
1 

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Tuesday, April 18, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. 
In the Upland City Hall Council Chambers 
460 N. Euclid Avenue, Upland, CA  91786 

And Virtual/Online or Teleconference 

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://meet.goto.com/711459373 

You can also dial in using your phone. 
Access Code: 711-459-373 
United States: +1 (224) 501-3412 
 Call to Order
 Salute to the Flag
1. Recognitions and Presentations:
2. Additions-Deletions to the Agenda:
3. Shareholder-Public Testimony:

This is the time for any shareholder or member of the public to address the board members
on any topic under the jurisdiction of the Company, which is on or not on the agenda. Please
note, pursuant to the Brown Act the board is prohibited from taking actions on items not
listed on the agenda. For any testimony, speakers are requested to keep their comments to
no more than four (4) minutes, including the use of any visual aids, and to do so in a focused
and orderly manner. Anyone wishing to speak is requested to voluntarily fill out and submit
a speaker’s form to the manager prior to speaking.

4. Consent Calendar Items:
All items listed hereunder are considered to be routine and there will be no separate discussion
of these items unless members of the board request specific items to be removed from the
consent calendar for separate action. All items listed or remaining will be voted upon in a single
action.
A. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes

Regular Meeting Minutes of March 21, 2023.
B. Planning, Resources, and Operations Committee (PROC) Meeting Minutes

No meeting minutes to approve.
C. Administration and Finance Committee (AFC) Meeting Minutes

Approve Meeting Minutes of November 22, 2022.
D. AdHoc Committee for Office Feasibility Study

No meeting minutes to approve.
E. Financial Statement

Income Statement and Balance Sheet for February 28, 2023.
F. Investment Activity Report

Monthly Report of Investments Activity.
G. Water Production and Consumption

Monthly water production and consumption figures.
H. Prominent Issues Update

Status summaries on certain on-going active issues.
I. Projects and Operations Update

Status summaries on projects and operations matters.
J. Groundwater Level Patterns [Quarterly in January, April, July, and October]

Tracking patterns of groundwater elevations relative to ground surface. 
K. Conservation Program Update [Quarterly in January, April, July, and October]

Update on SAWCo’s existing water conservation programs 
L. Correspondence of Interest

https://meet.goto.com/711459373
tel:+12245013412,,711459373


 2  

5. Board Committee – Delegate Report: 
A. PVPA Representative Report 

Verbal report by representative. 
B. Six Basins Representative Report 

Verbal report by representative. 
C. Chino Basin Representative Report 

Verbal report by representative. 
D. Cucamonga Basin Representative Report 

Verbal update by representative. 
E. Administration and Finance Committee (AFC) Chairman’s Report 

Verbal report on March 28, 2023 meeting.  
F. Planning, Resources, and Operations Committee (PROC) Chairman’s Report 

No meeting to report.  
G. Office & Yard Feasibility Study Ad Hoc Committee 

  No meeting to report. 
 

6. General Manager’s Report on Activities 
A. Salary Range Adjustment 

Consider adjusting the salary table to account for inflation. 
B. Clothing Allotment 

Review current and proposed clothing allotment for field staff. 
C. Condolence Policy Update 

Review current and proposed update for condolence policy. 
D. Property and Casualty Insurance Renewal 

Ratify the renewal of the Company’s Annual Property and Casualty Insurance. 
E. Board Compensation for Chino Basin Watermaster Board Meeting Attendance 

Consider compensation for directors’ attendance at Chino Basin Watermaster Board meetings. 
    

7. Closed Session:  
A. General Manager’s Annual Review, Goals, and Objectives [CGC § 54957 subdivision 

9(b)]. 

8.  Director’s Comments and Future Agenda Items:  

Adjournment: 
The next regular Board Meeting will be held on Tuesday, May 16, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

NOTE: All agenda report items and back-up materials are available for review and/or acquisition from the 
Company Office (139 N. Euclid Avenue, Upland, CA.) during regular office hours, Monday through 
Thursday [8:00a – 11:30a and 12:30p – 4:00p] and alternating Fridays [8:00a – 11:30a and 12:30p – 
3:00p] and on the Company’s website www.sawaterco.com. The agenda is also available for review and 
copying at the Upland Public Library located at 460 N. Euclid Avenue. 

 
POSTING STATEMENT: On April 13, 2023, a true and correct copy of this agenda was posted at the 
entry of the Water Company’s office (139 N. Euclid Avenue), on the City of Upland public bulletin 
board (450 N. Euclid Ave.), Public Library (460 N. Euclid Ave.), and on the Water Company’s website. 

http://www.sawaterco.com/


SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 
MINUTES OF THE SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 

Tuesday, March 21, 2023 

An open meeting of the Board of Directors of the San Antonio Water Company (SAWCo) was called to 
order at 5:01 p.m. on the above date at the City of Upland Council Chambers, 460 N. Euclid Ave., Upland, 
California. Directors present were Rudy Zuniga, Will Elliott, Bob Cable, Bill Velto, Kati Parker, and Bob 
Bowcock. Also in attendance were SAWCo’s General Manager Brian Lee, Assistant General Manager Teri 
Layton, General Legal Counsel Derek Hoffman, and Senior Administrative Specialist Kelly Mitchell. 
President Zuniga presided.   

Director Elliott led all in attendance in the flag salute. 

1. Recognitions and Presentations: None.

2. Additions-Deletions to the Agenda: Mr. Lee called the Board’s attention to the dais where he had
placed a pamphlet for the exhibit at the Ontario Museum of History and Art titled “Built on Water”. The
exhibit opens Saturday, August 19th and features some historic items from SAWCo. Mr. Lee felt it
prudent to attend the grand opening.

Mr. Lee also advised of a call he received from Citizen’s Business Bank assuring the Company’s
accounts are sound and unaffected by the recent bank concerns.

3. Shareholder-Public Testimony: None.

4. Consent Calendar Items:
A. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes

  Regular Meeting Minutes of February 21, 2023. 
B. Planning, Resources and Operations Committee (PROC) Meeting Minutes

 Approve Meeting Minutes of October 25, 2022. 
C. Administration and Finance Committee (AFC) Meeting Minutes

 No meeting minutes to approve. 
D. AdHoc Committee for Office Feasibility Study

    No meeting minutes to approve. 
E. Financial Statement

Income Statement and Balance Sheet for January 31, 2023. 
F. Investment Activity Report

  Monthly Report of Investments Activity. 
G. Water Production and Consumption

 Monthly water production and consumption figures. 
H. Prominent Issues Update

 Status summaries on certain on-going active issues. 
I. Projects and Operations Update

 Status summaries on projects and operations matters. 
J. Groundwater Level Patterns [Quarterly in January, April, July, and October]

 Tracking patterns of groundwater elevations relative to ground surface. 
K. Conservation Program Update [Quarterly in January, April, July, and October]

 Update on SAWCo’s existing water conservation programs. 
L. Correspondence of Interest
M. Company 2022 Tax Returns

Director Parker moved and Director Velto seconded to approve the Consent Calendar as presented. 
Motion carried unanimously.  

Item 4A



March 21, 2023 

2 

5. Board Committee – Delegate Report:
A. Pomona Valley Protective Association (PVPA) Representative’s Report – Director Parker

reported PVPA met on Wednesday, March 8th at the Sycamore Inn for what was mainly closed
session with lawyers. The PVPA board is considering information regarding its nonprofit status
regarding resources and activities which may include funding projects or programs that benefit the
public which are administered by shareholders. More information forthcoming.

B. Six Basins Representative Report – Ms. Layton reported a meeting was held on February 22nd.
The annual report was reviewed with comments requested by March 10th.  The annual report is
due to the State by April 1st.

The Strategic Planning Workshop followed the regular meeting. The figures provided by PVPA and
the United States Army Corps of Engineers (US Army Corps) do not match what is released from
the dam. PVPA is consistently lower than the US Army Corps. West Yost will be coordinating with
US Army Corps and updating maps with observations. Staff will also reach out to various entities
regarding their implementation of the Strategic Plan projects.

The next meeting is scheduled for the following day.

C. Chino Basin Representative Report – Mr. Lee reported the budget for Chino Basin is scheduled
to be released today. Staff will review the budget and reach out with any questions or concerns
they have.

The Appropriative Pool meeting held in February was the first physically attended by staff in many
months. SAWCo brought along new legal counsel Derek Hoffman to introduce to all in attendance.

D. Cucamonga Basin Representative Report – Mr. Lee stated the parties met in February. An
update on the water model was provided by the hydrogeologist. A test of the model found a couple
of areas of the model that did not match real life conditions. They will be going over those areas to
see if they can get them to match up.

E. Administration and Finance Committee (AFC) Chairman’s Report – No meeting to report.

F. Planning, Resources, and Operations Committee (PROC) Chairman’s Report – Director Elliott
reported the committee met on February 28th. A project status report was given, and the master
plan was discussed. More on the master plan is covered under the General Manager’s Report on
Activities.

G. Office Feasibility Study Ad Hoc Committee – No meeting to report.

6. General Manager’s Report on Activities:
A. Nominees for the Position of Director of the Company– Mr. Lee stated there are three positions

up for election. Up until the previous week there were four positions open, however, in speaking
with legal counsel and reviewing the company bylaws, it was determined that when Director
Bowcock was appointed to former President Tom Thomas’ seat, he would complete Director
Thomas’ term not simply hold the seat until the next election. Director Bowcock’s name is included
on the proxy contained in the Board meeting packet but is crossed out. His name is not included on
the proxy that was mailed to shareholders.

The slate of nominees presented for SAWCo’s Board of Directors included Will Elliott, Martha
Goss, and Rudy Zuniga.

Director Parker moved and Director Cable seconded to approve the slate of nominees for
SAWCo’s Board of Directors as presented. Motion carried unanimously.



March 21, 2023 

3 

B. 2022 Company Audit – Mr. Lee presented SAWCo’s 2022 Audit to answer any questions the
Board may have prior to it being presented at the upcoming Annual Shareholder’s Meeting.
Hearing no questions, Mr. Lee moved to the next agenda item.

C. Comprehensive System Master Plan & Asset Management Program – Mr. Lee advised work
on this item began in 2020. At the time SAWCo did not have a fully functional computer simulation
model for its domestic and irrigation systems. With this master plan, SAWCo can hire consultants
to run the models for questions staff may have about adding or removing components from the
system.

The master plan includes roughly $9 million dollars worth of projects, of which many are studies
that would then lead to future projects and increased project costs. It was previously determined
that SAWCo should be spending anywhere from $1.5 to $2 million dollars per year on capital
projects. The master plan projects come in at around $1 million dollars per year.

Director Elliott moved and Director Cable seconded to approve the Comprehensive System Master
Plan & Asset Management Plan as presented. Motion carried unanimously.

D. SAWCo Office and Yard Facilities Design and Construction Management Contract – Mr. Lee
presented the design and construction management contract with Claremont Environmental
Design Group (CEDG) for SAWCo’s office and yard facilities design. A draft version of this contract
was presented to the Board for review previously. The current contract has two additional
paragraphs; one an indemnity and the other a limit of liability, as recommended by SAWCo’s legal
counsel. The two additional paragraphs are included in the paperwork placed on the dais for the
Board.

Mr. Lee has been presented with two questions from shareholders regarding the new office and
yard location. One question asked was how the traffic flow from 20th Street to Campus Avenue will
be controlled. Mr. Lee advised the road from Campus Avenue to 20th Street will not be for public
access but for employees and deliveries. The other question asked was when will SAWCo notify
the residents about the project. Mr. Lee stated notification to residents will occur after receiving full
approval from the Board to move forward with the project.

Director Zuniga stated he was approached and asked about SAWCo building a larger Boardroom
or an All-Purpose room large enough to fit the community allowing SAWCo to host waterwise and
other water related education classes. Director Velto did not see a reason to build such a room as
the City of Upland has already offered up their facilities. He also felt the community may not
appreciate additional traffic on 20th Street that water related classes may create.

Mr. Lee requested authorization to sign the contract with CEDG with additional two paragraphs as
presented.

Director Elliott moved and Director Velto seconded to authorize the general manager to sign the
Office and Yard Facilities Design and Construction Management Contract with CEDG as
presented. Motion carried unanimously.

E. Brown Act Changes Regarding Public Meetings – Mr. Lee advised this item is for receive and
file only. Recent changes to the Brown Act state that in person meetings are now required.
SAWCo’s Board meetings have been in person for a while now, however, the committee meetings
continue to be held virtually. Beginning in March, SAWCo’s committee meetings will require in-
person attendance unless there is good reason. SAWCo’s legal counsel prepared a memo on the
topic which was provided to the Board. Meetings will continue to be recorded and offered to
viewers and participants via GoToMeeting.



March 21, 2023 

4 

Mr. Hoffman stated the law has been updated to help determine what a good reason for not 
attending a meeting in person. The Brown Act is now returning to pre-COVID public meeting 
operations. Just cause and emergency circumstance are the two exceptions to the rule. There are 
limits as to how many times one can utilize these exceptions. Any questions on how the exceptions 
are applied can be directed to Mr. Hoffman. 

7. Closed Session:
A. General Manager’s Annual Review, Goals, and Objectives [CGC §54957 subdivision 9(b)] –

The Board went into closed session at 5:21 p.m. Upon return from closed session at 6:57 p.m., Mr.
Hoffman stated there was no reportable action.

8. Director’s Comments and Future Agenda Items: Director Parker stated she took over the position of
alternate for the minor appropriators in Chino Basin Watermaster for former SAWCo Director Tom
Thomas. She attends most of the meetings to stay current on what is happening. If the primary does
not attend, she receives a stipend of $125. Otherwise, she attends on her own time. She asked that
the possibility of providing a stipend to her when she attends the meetings as the alternate be placed
on the agenda for April’s Board meeting.

Director Bowcock stated that typically Mutual Water Companies will pay the difference between what
the stipend is from the other company, in this case Chino Basin Watermaster, and what it pays its
directors for meetings. He suggested bringing the item through the AFC for recommendations.

Director Velto recommended checking the company bylaws as well.

Director Velto commented on the amount of water being released from Lake Oroville. The amount
released every hour could have served water to anywhere from 3,000 to 6,000 California households
(outdoors and indoors) for a full year; every eight hours, 24,000 to 48,000 households. Not enough
reservoirs are being built because they are concerned about the environment, however, the drought is
an impact of the environment. There is a storage and water management problem in California.

Director Cable stated SAWCo is not experiencing any of those issues.

Adjournment:
With no further business to discuss the meeting was adjourned at 7:06 p.m.

____________________________ 
 Assistant Secretary 

  Brian Lee 



SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 
ADMINISTRATION and FINANCE COMMITTEE (AFC) 

MINUTES 
November 22, 2022 

An open meeting of the Administration and Finance Committee (AFC) of the San Antonio Water 
Company (SAWCo) was held virtually and called to order at 3:03 p.m. on the above date as 
noticed. Committee Members present were Bill Velto and Rudy Zuniga. Directors Martha Goss 
and Bob Cable were absent. Also in attendance were, SAWCo’s General Legal counsel Derek 
Hoffman, General Manager Brian Lee, Assistant General Manager Teri Layton, and Senior 
Administrative Specialist Kelly Mitchell. Mr. Lee presided.  

1. Recognitions and Presentations: None.

2. Additions-Deletions to the Agenda: None.

3. Public Comments: None.

4. Approval of Committee Meeting Minutes: Director Zuniga moved and Director Velto
seconded to approve the meeting minutes of September 27, 2022. Motion carried
unanimously.

5. Administrative and Financial Issues:
A. Information Technology Request For Proposal (RFP) – Mr. Lee explained he previously

issued an Information Technology (IT) RFP for a time and material contract. The RFP was
sent to six local IT firms yet only one submitted a proposal. The one proposal received was
not for time and materials but for a monthly retainer and is therefore considered a non-
responsive bid. Mr. Lee would like to alter the original RFP from a time and materials
contract to a monthly retainer.

Director Bob Cable entered the meeting at 3:05 p.m.

Director Cable inquired whether the contract SAWCo currently has with Inland Productivity
Solutions, Inc. is a monthly retainer type. Mr. Lee replied that it is a monthly retainer
contract.

Director Velto suggested staff reach out to the City of Upland to see if they can submit a
proposal. Director Cable questioned whether that would be a conflict of interest. Staff was
directed to look into whether the City of Upland could submit a proposal.

Director Velto moved and Director Cable seconded to recommend the Board authorize the
General Manager to alter the IT RFP to request monthly retainer proposals instead of a time
and materials contract and release. Motion carried.

6. Closed Session: None.

7. Committee Comments and Future Agenda Items: Director Cable wished everyone a Happy
Thanksgiving. 

8. Adjournment: Seeing no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 3:11 p.m.

____________________________________
     Assistant Secretary 

Brian Lee 

Item 4C



4/3/2023 9:59:09 AM Page 1 of 3

Income Statement
San Antonio Water Company, CA Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2023 Period Ending: 02/28/2023

MTD Activity YTD Activity
Budget

RemainingIncomeStatement
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

Category: 4 - Income

SubCategory: 40 - Shareholder Revenue

20,236.75 20,227.89270,000.00 270,000.00 249,772.111185 - Domestic Water Income (Base)

12,562.09 12,562.09230,000.00 230,000.00 217,437.911215 - Domestic Water Income (Supplemental)

18,410.67 18,410.67230,000.00 230,000.00 211,589.331220 - Domestic Water Income (Tier 3)

33,678.64 33,678.64200,000.00 200,000.00 166,321.361230 - Domestic Water Income (Readi/Chrg)

10,299.73 10,299.7361,000.00 61,000.00 50,700.271235 - Domestic Water Availability Charge (WAC)

220,211.47 449,117.593,100,000.00 3,100,000.00 2,650,882.411245 - Municipal Water Income (Base)

6,400.00 12,800.0077,000.00 77,000.00 64,200.001268 - Municipal Water Income (Readi/Chrg)

7,556.65 8,523.47205,000.00 205,000.00 196,476.531274 - Misc Water Income (Base)

11,261.78 11,261.7850,000.00 50,000.00 38,738.221275 - Misc Water Income (Supplemental)

39,756.00 79,512.00477,000.00 477,000.00 397,488.001276 - Munnicipal Water Availability Charge (WAC)

321.68 321.685,000.00 5,000.00 4,678.321280 - Misc Water Income (Tier 3)

1,860.00 3,720.0023,000.00 23,000.00 19,280.001288 - Misc Water Income (Readi/Chrg)

1,922.00 3,844.0023,000.00 23,000.00 19,156.001290 - Misc Water Availability Charge (WAC)

8,542.85 8,542.8552,000.00 52,000.00 43,457.151295 - Dormant Water Availability Charge (WAC)

0.00 0.001,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.001302 - Meter Service Fees

120.00 450.005,000.00 5,000.00 4,550.001400 - Stock Transfer

200.00 235.002,000.00 2,000.00 1,765.001410 - Late/Re-establishment Fee

25.00 25.000.00 0.00 -25.001420 - Return Check Fee

40.00 40.00300.00 300.00 260.001430 - Stock Certificate Storage and Handling Fee

393,405.31 673,572.39 4,338,227.615,011,800.00 5,011,800.00SubCategory: 40 - Shareholder Revenue Total:

SubCategory: 42 - Non-Shareholder Revenue

0.00 253.132,000.00 2,000.00 1,746.871725 - Misc. Income

0.00 67.000.00 0.00 -67.001750 - Service/Litigation Agreements

6,111.84 12,223.6870,000.00 70,000.00 57,776.321753 - Ground Lease Income

0.00 19,101.9120,000.00 20,000.00 898.091755 - Interest Earned

0.00 0.00344,000.00 344,000.00 344,000.001785 - Gain on Sale of Asset

2,985.00 2,985.000.00 0.00 -2,985.001815 - Quitclaim of Easements

9,096.84 34,630.72 401,369.28436,000.00 436,000.00SubCategory: 42 - Non-Shareholder Revenue Total:

402,502.15 708,203.11 4,739,596.895,447,800.00 5,447,800.00Category: 4 - Income Total:

Category: 5 - O & M Expense

SubCategory: 50 - Operating Facilities

29,875.33 55,302.54280,000.00 280,000.00 224,697.462175 - Facility Related Field Labor

44,339.09 64,963.52350,000.00 350,000.00 285,036.482235 - Repairs to Facilities and Equipment

35,527.36 118,546.50900,000.00 900,000.00 781,453.502265 - Power-Gas & Electric (utilities)

109,741.78 238,812.56 1,291,187.441,530,000.00 1,530,000.00SubCategory: 50 - Operating Facilities Total:

SubCategory: 51 - Operating Activities

4,046.57 9,092.0779,000.00 79,000.00 69,907.932475 - Customer Service

1,407.51 1,569.4426,000.00 26,000.00 24,430.562498 - Conservation

5,454.08 10,661.51 94,338.49105,000.00 105,000.00SubCategory: 51 - Operating Activities Total:

SubCategory: 52 - Other Operating Expense

5,441.21 9,704.7870,000.00 70,000.00 60,295.222205 - Non-Facility Related Labor

100.00 100.003,500.00 3,500.00 3,400.002210 - O & M - All Other

3,137.32 5,301.3710,000.00 10,000.00 4,698.632295 - Supplies (Inventory & Tools Expense)

90,698.06 183,899.131,100,000.00 1,100,000.00 916,100.872565 - Depreciation/Amortization

0.00 0.00240,000.00 240,000.00 240,000.002715 - Property Taxes

17,093.20 19,490.87143,000.00 143,000.00 123,509.132805 - Water Resource Mgmt.

116,469.79 218,496.15 1,348,003.851,566,500.00 1,566,500.00SubCategory: 52 - Other Operating Expense Total:

231,665.65 467,970.22 2,733,529.783,201,500.00 3,201,500.00Category: 5 - O & M Expense Total:

Item 4E



Income Statement For Fiscal: 2023 Period Ending: 02/28/2023

4/3/2023 9:59:09 AM Page 2 of 3

MTD Activity YTD Activity
Budget

RemainingIncomeStatement
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

Category: 6 - G & A Expense

SubCategory: 60 - Personnel

21,704.57 41,914.52300,000.00 300,000.00 258,085.482115 - Administrative Services

7,004.38 15,521.3278,000.00 78,000.00 62,478.682325 - Payroll Taxes

0.00 1,761.0015,000.00 15,000.00 13,239.002355 - Worker's Compensation Insurance

13,978.98 37,645.35190,000.00 190,000.00 152,354.652385 - Benefit Pay (Vac., sick, etc.)

19,167.31 38,156.72295,000.00 295,000.00 256,843.282415 - Benefit Insurance (Pension,Life,Medical,Vision etc

0.00 0.002,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.002430 - Benefit Administrative Services

61,855.24 134,998.91 745,001.09880,000.00 880,000.00SubCategory: 60 - Personnel Total:

SubCategory: 61 - Other

300.00 3,650.0060,000.00 60,000.00 56,350.002445 - Office/IT Support

2,704.04 5,297.7332,000.00 32,000.00 26,702.272505 - Directors Fees & Expense

0.00 0.0041,000.00 41,000.00 41,000.002535 - Liability Insurance

1,469.35 3,081.4543,000.00 43,000.00 39,918.552595 - Communication

244.00 8,089.003,500.00 3,500.00 -4,589.002625 - Dues & Publications

281.29 14,666.7320,000.00 20,000.00 5,333.272655 - Outside Services

0.00 0.0012,500.00 12,500.00 12,500.002745 - Income Tax Expense

26,124.73 30,037.3665,000.00 65,000.00 34,962.642775 - Accounting

26,550.13 51,396.63150,000.00 150,000.00 98,603.372776 - Legal

4,969.55 10,333.6560,000.00 60,000.00 49,666.352790 - Human Resources Expense

1,262.42 1,501.5130,000.00 30,000.00 28,498.492865 - All other

63,905.51 128,054.06 388,945.94517,000.00 517,000.00SubCategory: 61 - Other Total:

125,760.75 263,052.97 1,133,947.031,397,000.00 1,397,000.00Category: 6 - G & A Expense Total:

45,075.75 -22,820.08Total Surplus (Deficit): 849,300.00849,300.00



Income Statement For Fiscal: 2023 Period Ending: 02/28/2023

4/3/2023 9:59:09 AM Page 3 of 3

Fund Summary

MTD Activity YTD Activity
Budget

RemainingFund
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

10 - 10 45,075.75 -22,820.08 872,120.08849,300.00849,300.00

Total Surplus (Deficit): 45,075.75 -22,820.08849,300.00849,300.00



4/3/2023 10:05:46 AM Page 1 of 2

Balance Sheet
San Antonio Water Company, CA Account Summary

As Of 02/28/2023

Account Name Balance

Fund: 10 - 10

Assets

BalSubCategory: 10 - Cash

10-00-00-10100-00000 Petty Cash 250.00

10-00-00-10201-00000 Checking Account-8431 1,156,766.09

10-00-00-10415-00000 D&O Checking Account 1,879,694.29

10-00-00-10438-00000 Depre/Obsolescene Res (LAIF) 5,175,585.96

Total BalSubCategory 10 - Cash: 8,212,296.34

BalSubCategory: 11 - Accounts Receivable

10-00-00-11100-00000 Accounts Receivable-Domestic 99,968.82

10-00-00-11200-00000 Accounts Receivable-Municipal 279,481.82

10-00-00-11250-00000 Accounts Receivable-Misc. 19,770.39

10-00-00-11260-00000 Accounts Receivable - Dormant 8,740.85

10-00-00-11275-00000 Contra Accounts Receivable - Unapplied Credits -19,454.94

10-00-00-11300-00000 Accounts Receivable-Other 216,850.86

10-00-00-11301-00000 Note Receivable 344,000.00

Total BalSubCategory 11 - Accounts Receivable: 949,357.80

BalSubCategory: 12 - Inventory

10-00-00-12100-00000 Inventories-Materials & Supply 173,052.82

Total BalSubCategory 12 - Inventory: 173,052.82

BalSubCategory: 13 - Prepaid

10-00-00-13100-00000 Prepaid Insurance 8,868.75

10-00-00-13105-00000 PREPAID POSTAGE 369.00

Total BalSubCategory 13 - Prepaid: 9,237.75

BalSubCategory: 14 - Investments

10-00-00-14150-00000 P.V.P.A. Investment 1.00

10-00-00-14151-00000 457B Plan Investment 58,630.91

Total BalSubCategory 14 - Investments: 58,631.91

BalSubCategory: 15 - Property, Plant, & Equipment

10-00-00-15100-00000 Land & Water Rights 920,161.26

10-00-00-15110-1507J Work in Progress "Proj J" 91,534.00

10-00-00-15110-1602U Work in Progress 1,209,962.46

10-00-00-15110-2109 Work In Progress 11,232.00

10-00-00-15110-2201 Work in Progress 15,070.38

10-00-00-15110-2202 Work in Progress CO#2202 58,335.90

10-00-00-15110-2301 WIP-Well#16 Conversion 24.39

10-00-00-15150-00000 Buildings & Site Improvements 1,827,589.96

10-00-00-15200-00000 Wells-Shafts, Bldgs, & Equip 4,910,918.85

10-00-00-15250-00000 Boosters-Bldgs & Equip 2,629,884.62

10-00-00-15300-00000 Reservoirs 3,081,787.33

10-00-00-15350-00000 Tunnels, Forebay, & Ponds 1,587,111.19

10-00-00-15400-00000 Spreading Works-Cucamonga Wash 54,859.53

10-00-00-15410-00000 Spreading Works-SanAntonio Wsh 50,235.18

10-00-00-15450-00000 Pipelines 19,228,760.46

10-00-00-15500-00000 Autos & Equipment 661,194.94

10-00-00-15550-00000 Tools 110,727.03

10-00-00-15600-00000 Telemetry System 625,621.96

10-00-00-15650-00000 Office Equipment 507,141.72

10-00-00-15990-00000 Accumulated Depreciation -15,507,029.98

Total BalSubCategory 15 - Property, Plant, & Equipment: 22,075,123.18

BalSubCategory: 16 - Other Assets

10-00-00-16100-00000 Documents & Studies 1,009,546.33

10-00-00-16100-1905 WIP- Master Plan and Asset Managment Program 220,538.38

Item 4E



Balance Sheet As Of 02/28/2023

4/3/2023 10:05:46 AM Page 2 of 2

Account Name Balance

10-00-00-16105-2204 Work in Progress (Docs) 4,315.00

10-00-00-16990-00000 Accumulated Amortization -767,580.04

Total BalSubCategory 16 - Other Assets: 466,819.67

31,944,519.47Total Assets: 31,944,519.47

Liability

BalSubCategory: 13 - Prepaid

10-00-00-20650-00000 Deferred Revenue Deposit 1,608.00

Total BalSubCategory 13 - Prepaid: 1,608.00

BalSubCategory: 20 - Short-term less than 1 year

10-00-00-20100-00000 Trade Accounts Payable 129,267.11

10-00-00-20115-00000 D&O Trade Accounts Payable 8,193.75

10-00-00-20261-00000 Section 125 - Dental 0.12

10-00-00-20262-00000 Section 125 - Vision 0.16

10-00-00-20263-00000 Section 125 - Medical 0.06

10-00-00-20410-00000 State Franchise Tax Payable 518.00

10-00-00-20600-00000 Water Hydrant Meter Deposit 1,700.00

10-00-GN-20820-00000 Accrued Vacation Payable 20,404.60

10-00-OP-20820-00000 Accrued Vacation Payable 24,818.57

Total BalSubCategory 20 - Short-term less than 1 year: 184,902.37

BalSubCategory: 21 - Long-term more than 1 year

10-00-00-20152-00000 457B Deferred Comp Liability 58,630.91

10-00-00-21500-00000 Unclaimed Credits 464,368.37

10-00-00-22100-00000 Deferred Gain 343,059.43

Total BalSubCategory 21 - Long-term more than 1 year: 866,058.71

1,052,569.08Total Liability:

Equity

BalSubCategory: 30 - Stockholder equity

10-00-00-30200-00000 Contributed Capital - Ext. Fee 447,258.02

10-00-00-30210-00000 Contr. Property, Plant & Equip 2,432,256.77

10-00-00-30300-00000 Capital Account 1,500,000.00

10-00-00-30310-00000 Unissued Capital Stock -861,100.00

10-00-00-30400-00000 Retained Earngs-Brd Designated 7,231,692.92

10-00-00-30410-00000 Retained Earnings-Unrestricted 20,164,662.76

Total BalSubCategory 30 - Stockholder equity: 30,914,770.47

30,914,770.47Total Beginning Equity:

708,203.11Total Revenue

731,023.19Total Expense

-22,820.08Revenues Over/Under Expenses

Total Liabilities, Equity and Current Surplus (Deficit): 31,944,519.47

30,891,950.39Total Equity and Current Surplus (Deficit):



Undesignated Citizens Business Bank (CBB) Checking N/A None

Citizens Business Bank (CBB) Checking N/A None

Local Agency Investment Fund LAIF N/A 2.624%

TOTAL

Designated

Monthly Investment Activity Summary - Compiled from Banking Statements for Correlation with Monthly Financials

Institution
Type of 

Investment

Date of 

Maturity

Rate of 

Interest

Item 4F



Operating
target: $875k-$1.75M

1,156,766.09$   1,156,766.09$      
Capital Investment & 

Depreciation
Modernization

1,879,694.29$   1,879,694.29$   

5,175,585.96$   3,742,890.96$   1,432,695.00$  

8,212,046.34$   1,156,766.09$      5,622,585.25$   1,432,695.00$  

Monthly Investment Activity Summary - Compiled from Banking Statements for Correlation with Monthly Financials

Reserves

Account Balance as of 

2/28/2023

Depreciation & Obsolescence
target: $1.2M-$4.6M



Item 4G







4/12/23
all units in acre-feet





Page 6 - 28



Page 7 - 28













































Prominent Issues Report 
 Agenda Item No. 4H 

Agenda Date: April 18, 2023 

A. Water Supply through February 2023
• Annual entitlement for CY2023 is 13,000 AF

o Cumulative yearly production is 4,277 AF
o Cumulative yearly consumption was 2,298 AF
o Cumulative yearly spread was 2,064 AF
o Cumulative unaccounted water was -86 AF

Six Basins Production for 2023 
• Annual production right is 932 AF.
• Cumulative production is 227 AF.

Production is sent to the WFA treatment facility to meet City of Ontario and MVWD entitlement.
• The Company spread a total of 455 AF.

Cucamonga Basin Production for 2023 
• Annual production right is 5,669 AF.
• Cumulative production was 1,048 AF.
• The Company spread a total of 1,442 AF.

Chino Basin Production for 2023 
• Annual production right is 1,232 AF. 
• Cumulative production was 0 AF.
• The Company spread a total of 168 AF.

Surface Water (San Antonio Creek) flow for 2023 
Total flow was 2,032 AF. 

Tunnel flow for 2023 
San Antonio Tunnel flow was 687 AF.  
Frankish and Stamm Tunnel flow was 281 AF. 

B. Company Stock
1/4 shares of water stock moved from dormant to active this transfer period.
3/4 shares of water stock moved from active to dormant this transfer period.

C. Communication and Information Activities
“Facebook” - 179 friends liking our old FB page and 71 customers have liked our new FB page.
No new communication posted on the new page and no new communication on the old
Facebook page. Facebook is not able to merge the two Facebook pages; therefore, we are in
discussion of possibly deleting the old page.

D. Administration Matters
Meetings of interest:

• Wed, Mar 29 – GM and AGM provided tour of company facilities to Cucamonga Basin
partners

• Wed, Apr 5 – GM lunched with GM of Monte Vista Water District.

E. Groundwater Basin Matters

Chino Basin -

Spread Water from SAWCo - Application to spread 1,500 AF per year for years 21/22 through 
25/26 was approved by WM Board in July, 22. We started spreading water in January 2023. 



Prominent Issues Report 
 Agenda Item No. 4H 

Agenda Date: April 18, 2023 
Legal Issues 

Nov 18 - The Court denied a motion by the City of Ontario, Monte Vista and City of Chino 
regarding budget approval and funding of the Optimum Basin Management Program (OBMP) 
Implementation Plan (IP) California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) efforts. 

There are currently two appeals in the works: 

1. Ontario, Monte Vista and City of Chino have appealed the ruling that AP works under
‘majority rule’.

2. Ontario has appealed the ruling that the current Dry Year Yield (DYY) program is
operating under a legal contract.

Six Basins – 

A Watermaster Board meeting was held on March 22, 2023. 

Legal counsel briefed the board on the new rules regarding board members to attend meetings in person 
and not virtually. 

The annual report was approved.   

West Yoss gave an update of the monitoring that is happening in the San Antonio Spreading Grounds.  

The question was asked if the Board was still interested in a conjunctive use program.  The Board would 
need to consider.   

The April meeting was cancelled. 

Cucamonga Basin – 
The parties did a tour of SAWCo facilities on March 29th. 

A meeting was held on April 4th. The hydrogeologist gave another update on the modeling effort.  

Cost sharing past invoices from SAWCo was sent to Cucamonga Valley Water District and they 
are now asking for contracts. 

Next meeting is scheduled for May 3, 2023. 



Agenda Date: March 21, 2023 

 Agenda Item No. 4I 

Item Title: Projects and Operations Update 

Purpose: 
To update the Board and Shareholders on Company capital projects. 

Updates: 

1507 – Office Relocation 
The option under consideration is constructing an administrative and operations 
campus on Company property at 20th Street, without a Board Room. At its September 
2022 regular meeting the Board authorized staff to move ahead with a feasibility study 
of the 20th street property. Staff has contracted with CEDG, Inc. to complete said study, 
including ingress/egress and a conceptual site plan. 

Conceptual plans were reviewed by the AdHoc Committee. The item was discussed at 
last months Board Meeting. A professional services contract is up for review tonight. 

The Board approved a design and construction management contract at its March 2023 
regular meeting. Contract has been executed and Architect is currently working on 
preliminary plans. 

Original Budget ........................... $4,000,000 
Original Contracts .......................... $283,550 
Authorized Change Orders ...................... NA 
Current Contracts .......................... $283,550 

1602 – Holly Drive Reservoir, Phase 3 
Proposed construction of a second 120,000-gallon tank at the Holly Drive Tank site. 
Professional services agreement has been fully executed. Contract has been executed. 
Waiting on material delivery. Preconstruction meeting was held Thursday, April 6th. 
Submittal review is underway. Notice to Proceed issues April 10th. Contractor anticipates 
mobilizing to site on May 23rd.  

Original Budget .............................. $985,260 
Original Contracts .......................... $985,260 
Authorized Change Orders ...................... NA 
Current Contracts .......................... $985,260 

1902 – Cucamonga Crosswalls Mitigation 
TKE Engineering is working with staff to close out certain State and Federal Permits. 
Staff is also looking into long-term maintenance permits that will allow the Company 
yearly access to the site for clearing and grubbing. 

1905 – 2020 Master Plan 

2020 Master Plan was approved at the March 2023 Regular Board Meeting 

Board authorized a change order at the regular September 2022 meeting to address 
computer model issues discussed below. Computer Water Model being constructed 
by consultant. Staff is coordinating with consultant regarding areas of concern in the 



Agenda Date: March 21, 2023 

water model to improve accuracy. Revised schedule is to complete Master Plan by 
end of October. There remains a gap between field pressures and hydraulic model 
pressures indicating a restriction in our system. Staff and consultant are investigating. 
It may be a partially closed valve. Staff has asked consultant to separate hydraulic 
modeling issues from remainder of Master Plan and complete the Plan. Staff is 
currently reviewing draft chapters and hydraulic profiles. Confirming system 
pressures in the field with computer simulation model pressures. 2020 Master Plan 
was discussed at last PROC meeting and is up for Board review tonight.  

Original Budget ............................... $240,000 
Original Contracts ........................... $204,085 
Authorized Change Orders ............. $20,000 
Current Contracts ........................... $224,085 

2007 Well 19 
Project approved at April 2022 Board Meeting. Contract has been completed. Material 
being ordered and we are currently scheduling the start of work. Staff was informed 
this month that material deliveries (specifically the fiberglass casing) is delayed until 
early 2023. Tentative start of the test well has been scheduled for April 2023. 

Original Budget ........................... $1,130,990 
Original Contracts ....................... $1,130,990 
Authorized Change Orders ...................... NA 
Current Contracts ....................... $1,130,990 

2201 Paloma Hydraulic Break 
Technical study to review available options to modernize the facility and reduce low 
frequency noise during high waterflow events. Contract has been fully executed. 
Predesign meeting held. Options discussed. Draft technical report has been received 
by the Company. Project was authorized by the Board at the regular November 
meeting for inclusion in the 2024 budget. Professional Services proposals will be 
reviewed by PROC in April, 2023. Three proposals were received. 

Original Predesign Budget $40,000 
Original Design/Const. Budget $1,080,000 
Original Contracts $39,750 
Authorized Change Orders NA 
Current Contracts $39,750 

2202 Glendale Road Pipeline 
Replace aged pipelines within Glendale Road. Project was approved at the regular 
may Board Meeting. At the July Board meeting, the Board authorized the General 
Manager to execute a time and materials contract with Ardurra in the amount of 
$70,023. Contract has been executed. Consultant completed field survey and 
prepared 30% design review plans. Staff has completed review and returned 
comments back to consultant. 90% plan set has been reviewed and returned to 
consultant. Bid set scheduled was sent to six select contractors in mid-December. 
Schedule is to construct in early 2023. Contractor has completed mainline installation 
and is currently working on pressure testing and lateral installation. Project should be 
completed by end of May. 

Original Budget .......................................... $276,000 
Original Professional Services Contracts ........ $70,023 



Agenda Date: March 21, 2023 

Original Construction Contract ................... $437,931 
Authorized Change Orders................................... NA 
Current Contracts ...................................... $507,954 

2203 Well 31 Pipeline 
Project budgeted in the 2022 year. Replace approximately 1,400 linear feet of 14” 
pipeline from Well 31 delivering water to facilities at Golf Club Drive along backside of 
homes and within Upland Hills Country Club waterline easement. Abandon aged 
pipeline. The current steel pipeline was installed before 1976 and has exceeded its 
useful life. Identified by staff as a high maintenance pipeline. Professional Services 
proposals will be reviewed by PROC in April, 2023. Three proposals were received 

Original Budget .......................................... $420,000 
Original Contracts ................................................. $0 
Authorized Change Orders................................... NA 
Current Contracts ................................................ NA 

2204 GIS Update 
At the August Special Meeting, the Board authorized a contract with WSC to update 
the Company’s GIS maps. Contract has been executed. Consultant working on 
updates. 

Original Budget ............................................ $11,110 
Original Contracts ........................................ $11,110 
Authorized Change Orders................................... NA 
Current Contracts ........................................ $11,110 

2207 Well 31 Repair 
Well 31 suffered a catastrophic failure in October 2022. The Board authorized a repair 
contract at its special Budget workshop in December 2022. Contract has been 
executed and material is being procured. Well has been swabbed and equipment is 
currently being installed. 

Original Budget .......................................... $220,000 
Original Contracts ...................................... $200,000 
Authorized Change Orders................................... NA 
Current Contracts .......................................... $3,665 

2301 Well 16 Conversion 
Contractor is waiting on material delivery. 

Original Budget .......................................... $405,000 
Original Contracts ...................................... $390,665 
Authorized Change Orders................................... NA 
Current Contracts ...................................... $390,665 



Basin Water Levels 2012-2022

GROUNDWATER LEVELS  
 (feet below ground surface)

CUCAMONGA BASIN 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr
-211 -192 -202 -195 -191 -199 -211 -213 -202 -230 -255 -238 -239 -239 -249 -259 -251 -251 -261 -280 -301 -296 -312 -298 -305 -313 -321 -324 -300 -299 -306 -308 -279 -271 -297 -297 -283 -283 -308 -306 -305 -315 -321 -336 -326

CHINO BASIN 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr
-309 -307 -341 -328 -368 -353 -341 -385 -357 -391 -409 -418 -423 -424 -427 -427 -430 -452 -462 -466 -451 -441 -441 -442 -450 -451 -468 -473 -458 -428 -396 -402 -396 -389 -326 -383 -386 -384 -354 -321 -417 -428 -408 -447 -443

SIX BASINS 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr 1qtr 2qtr 3qtr 4qtr
Six Basins
Well 26 & 27A & 25A -282 -322 -358 -347 -380 -385 -448 -421 -477 -425 -439 -454 -450 -428 -459 -439 -467 -472 -528 -482 -447 -463 -547 -451 -525 -432 -506 -437 -337 -414 -439 -338 -380 -320 -420 -355 -379 -406 -375 -364 -356 -415 -401 -386 -399
Well 28 -265 -268 -271 -273 -277 -278 -279 -280 -281 -280 -280 -277 -281 -282 -283 -283 -283 -284 -286 -283 -270 -270 -272 -267 -277 -281 -283 -228 -243 -257 -267 -271 -272 -245 -271 -275 -278 -280 -280 -282 -280 -280 -281 -277

Static water levels for Cucamonga Basin wells 2, 3, 22, 24, 31, 32 0
Static water levels for Chino Basin wells 15, 16
Staic water levels for 6 Basin wells 25a, 26 and 27a
Note* 10/11/2019 pumping levels for wells 26 and 27A 416'
*Most static water levels s not available due to 2,3,24,31,32,16,26,27 all running during the quarter 2022

2020

2020

2020

2019

2019

2019

2018

2018

2018

* six basin levels come from well 25A only, the other wells (26&27A) were not shut down during the third quarter 2017.

2012

2013

2016

2012

2013

2013

2014

20232017

20172015

20142012 2021

2021

2021

2014

2023

2022

2022

2022

2015

2015

2016

2016

2017 2023

well levels 4/13/2023

Item 4J



-400

-350

-300

-250

-200

-150

-100

-50

0

D
ep

th
 to

 w
at

er
   

   
(F

t. 
B

el
ow

 G
rn

d)

Year

Cucamonga Basin Water Levels



-500

-450

-400

-350

-300

-250

-200

-150

-100

-50

0

D
ep

th
 to

 w
at

er
   

  (
Ft

. B
el

ow
 G

rn
d)

Year

Chino Basin Water Levels

Depth Below Ground Surface Linear (Depth Below Ground Surface)



-600

-500

-400

-300

-200

-100

0

100

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er

Year

Six Basins

4qtr

Well 26 & 27A & 25A

Well 28

-448 -279.4

Linear (Well 26 & 27A & 25A)

Linear (Well 26 & 27A & 25A)

Linear (Well 26 & 27A & 25A)

Linear (Well 26 & 27A & 25A)

Linear (Well 28)

Linear (Well 28)



April 18, 2023 

Agenda Item 

Item Title: Conservation Programs Update 

Purpose: 
Update on the Company’s existing water conservation programs 

I. Local Assistance in meeting Best Management Practices

Conservation rebates 2023: not available
Residential Rebate Programs- 
(Fiscal year) thru Metropolitan 
Water Dist. 

Devices/ 
Rebates 

Est. gallons 
saved/ 

device/year 

Total est. gallons 
saved per year* 

High Efficiency Clothes Washers 0 11,243 
Rotating Nozzles 0 
Weather Based Irrigation 
Controllers 

0 105,917 

High Efficiency Toilets (premium) 0 13,851 
Rain Barrels 0 619 

Turf Removal 0 

Residential Program thru Chino 
Basin Water Conservation District 
Landscape Audit 3485 

Total Savings for calendar year – 
n/a 

Funding is limited and rebates issued on first come, first served basis. 

II. SAWCo Efforts in meeting Demand Mgmt. Measures (DMM’s) as of 3/31/2023
SAWCo 
Programs- 
(2022) 

Total Budget: 
$14,000 

Devices/Rebates Est. gallons 
saved per 
device per 
year 

Total est. 
gallons 
saved per 
year 

Toilet Direct $2,000 0 15,600 
Installation for Cost to date: 
SAWCO 00.00 
customers 

SAWCo $12,000 7 15,600 109,200 
Wholesale Cost to date: 
Agencies $3,129.00 

Assistance- (7 toilets) 
Toilet Direct 
installation 

TOTAL 7 109,200 

4K



April 18, 2023 

SAWCo 
Financial 
Assistance 

2023 

     $00.00 

2022 

$662.70 

2021 

$ 4,551.00 

2020 

$9,198.53 

2019 

$31,782.54 

2018 

$8,474.70 

Financial Assistance Program – Adjustments made when customer has requested in writing a 
reprieve on their bill after repairing leak(s). 



Agenda Date: April 18, 2023 

Agenda Item No. 6A 

Item Title: Salary Table Adjustment 

Purpose: 
To consider adjusting employee salary tables to match local inflation. 

Issue: 
Does the Board agree with the AFC’s recommendation to adjust the Company salary tables to 
match inflation? 

Manager’s Recommendation: 
Recommend adjusting the Company’s salary tables 7.0% upward based on the Riverside / San 
Bernardino / Ontario ‘Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (CPI-
W)’ change from January 2022 to January 2023. 

Background:  
This item was reviewed by the AFC at its March 2023 regular meeting. The AFC voted to bring 
this item to the full Board with a recommendation to approve. 

A Consumer Price Index (CPI) measures changes in the price of consumer goods and services 
purchased by households. The Federal Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) tracks CPI for 
geographical areas in the States (www.bls.gov). 

Based on changes in the CPI tables, companies may adjust wages to ensure employee’s ‘cost 
of living’ is not impacted negatively by inflation. Adjustment to salary tables based on CPI are 
called, “Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA)”. 

Yearly, the Company considers adjustments to its salary tables based on published federal 
changes to a CPI index. 

The CPI numbers and respective yearly change are shown below for the Riverside / San 
Bernardino / Ontario ‘Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (CPI-
W)’: 

Geographic Area Jan 2021 Jan 2022 Change % Change 
Riverside, et al. 119.557 127.936 8.379 7.0 

Impact on the Budget: 
Implementing a COLA increases salary ranges only. It does not adjust current salary rates, except 
in one instances for 2023 The recommended COLA adjustment would place one employee below 
the salary range for their position. The Company would adjust this employee’s salary upward to 
bring this employee back into the newly adjusted range (full year cost increase would be $2,580). 
All other employees would be eligible for performance-based salary adjustments at the time of 
their annual review.  

Previous Actions: 
None. 

http://www.bls.gov/


2022 COLA 9.4%
Low Midpoint Control Point High Low Midpoint Control Point High

General Manager 213,304$     253,282$     266,614$     293,301$     General Manager 102.55$     121.77$     128.18$     141.01$     
Assistant General Manager 164,861$     195,790$     206,086$     226,678$     Assistant General Manager 79.26$    94.13$    99.08$    108.98$     
Water Utility Superintendant 100,110$     118,872$     125,112$     137,634$     Water Utility Superintendant 48.13$    57.15$    60.15$    66.17$    
Senior Administrative Specialist 62,150$    73,798$    77,688$    85,467$    Senior Administrative Specialist 29.88$    35.48$    37.35$    41.09$    
Accounting/Personnel Specialist 62,150$    73,798$    77,688$    85,467$    Accounting/Personnel Specialist 29.88$    35.48$    37.35$    41.09$    
Admin/Conservation Specialist 51,355$    61,006$    64,210$    70,637$    Admin/Conservation Specialist 24.69$    29.33$    30.87$    33.96$    
Water Utility Worker 1 56,493$    67,101$    70,637$    77,688$    Water Utility Worker 1 27.16$    32.26$    33.96$    37.35$    
Water Utility Worker 2 68,349$    81,182$    85,446$    93,995$    Water Utility Worker 2 32.86$    39.03$    41.08$    45.19$    
Water Utility Worker 3 75,213$    89,315$    93,995$    103,397$     Water Utility Worker 3 36.16$    42.94$    45.19$    49.71$    

2023 COLA 7.0%
Low Midpoint Control Point High Low Midpoint Control Point High

General Manager 228,238$     271,003$     285,272$     313,830$     General Manager 109.73$     130.29$     137.15$     150.88$     
Assistant General Manager 176,405$     209,498$     220,522$     242,549$     Assistant General Manager 84.81$    100.72$     106.02$     116.61$     
Water Utility Superintendant 107,120$     127,192$     133,869$     147,264$     Water Utility Superintendant 51.50$    61.15$    64.36$    70.80$    
Senior Administrative Specialist 66,498$    78,957$    83,117$    91,458$    Senior Administrative Specialist 31.97$    37.96$    39.96$    43.97$    
Accounting/Personnel Specialist 66,498$    78,957$    83,117$    91,458$    Accounting/Personnel Specialist 31.97$    37.96$    39.96$    43.97$    
Admin/Conservation Specialist 54,954$    65,270$    68,702$    75,587$    Admin/Conservation Specialist 26.42$    31.38$    33.03$    36.34$    
Water Utility Worker 1 60,445$    71,802$    75,587$    83,117$    Water Utility Worker 1 29.06$    34.52$    36.34$    39.96$    
Water Utility Worker 2 73,133$    86,861$    91,437$    100,568$     Water Utility Worker 2 35.16$    41.76$    43.96$    48.35$    
Water Utility Worker 3 80,475$    95,576$    100,568$     110,635$     Water Utility Worker 3 38.69$    45.95$    48.35$    53.19$    

Proposed 2023 Salary rate Proposed 2023 hourly rate

2022 Salary rate 2022 hourly rate

Item 6A



Agenda Date: April 18, 2023 
  Agenda Item No. 6B 

Item Title: Request for Change Annual Clothing Allotment 

Purpose:  
To present a proposed change in the annual clothing allotment for Field Operation staff. 

Issue: 
Current annual clothing allotment for field personnel is $330 annually, originally set in 
2014. The allotment is used for the purchase of required non-logo items such as steel 
toed boots and jeans as needed.   

Due to inflationary increases staff proposes the annual clothing allotment be increased.  

Manager’s Recommendation: 
The Board update the Water Company’s Annual Clothing Allotment for Field Operations 
to $600. 

Background:   
This item was reviewed by the AFC at its March 2023 regular meeting. The AFC voted to 
bring this item to the full Board with a recommendation to approve. 

The Water Company’s Uniform Policy and Annual Clothing Allotment for the Field 
Operations staff provides an annual uniform allowance for the purchase and maintenance 
of work boots (with toe safety protectors) and work jeans.  The current annual clothing 
allotment for each field employee is $330.00, which is reimbursable with acceptable 
receipts and properly completed check requests. 

Clothing prices have increased substantially since 2014. 

Impact on the Budget: 
Up to $1,350 per year (5 x ($600-$330) = $1,350). 

Previous Actions:  
Board revised policy in May 2014. 



Agenda Date: March 28, 2023 
 Agenda Item No. 6C 

Item Title: Condolence Policy Update 

Issue:  
Does the Board wish to consider updating the established guidelines for the Company’s 
expression of emotional support? 

Manager’s Recommendation: 
Recommend adoption of updated emotional support guidelines 

Background:  
This Company is a family comprised of many individuals. There are an array of various 
life events that prompt an emotional response or solace and it is appropriate for the 
Company family to provide an expression of support to our individual family members 
during emotionally trying times. 

Company family support during these times is meaningful and helpful, but it comes 
down to a question of who, what, when and how much?   

To provide an expression of Company support in time of need, the Board established 
guidelines in 2007 to 1) identify the person or persons that the Company desires to 
respond to, 2) the type of adequate response appropriate to the situation and 
direct/indirect relationship with the Company, and 3) the extent of the response (how 
much) to commemorate or tribute. 

Attached is a “draft” update for comments and consideration. 

This item was reviewed by the AFC at its March 2023 regular meeting. The AFC voted 
to bring this item to the full Board with a recommendation to approve. 

Impact on the Budget: 
Unknown. 

Previous Actions:  
Board approval of policy in 2007. 



Agenda Date: March 28, 2023 
“Draft” 

Condolence Policy 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to express sympathy, 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to establish guidelines in its expressions 

NOW THEREFORE, The Board of Directors of the San Antonio Water 

Company, in Upland, California, establishes the following guidelines: 

The Board and staff shall respond to the following events: 

 Loss of life or loved one

 Life threatening illness

 Major surgeries

Specific cards, flowers or donations shall be presented to: 

1. Members of the Board and company employees
2. Board member spouses and children
3. Company employees and their immediate family members (as defined by the

California Code of Regulations)
3. Ex-Officio members of the Board
4. Inspectors of Election

Specific cards shall be presented to staff and Board/Council members of: 

1. Affiliate members [Chino Basin, Six Basin, Cucamonga Basin, PVPA]
2. Associate agency members [City of Upland, City of Ontario, Monte Vista, Three

Valleys, WFA, etc.]

Flower and plant arrangements shall not exceed $200 

Donations to the bereaved charity of choice not to exceed $200 without prior Board 
approval 

Item 6C



Agenda Date: March 28, 2023 

§13692. Immediate Family Member Defined.

For purposes of subdivision (d) of Labor Code Section 2066, "immediate family 
member" means spouse, domestic partner, cohabitant, child, stepchild, grandchild, 
parent, stepparent, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, 
grandparent, great grandparent, brother, sister, half-brother, half-sister, stepsibling, 
brother-in-law, sister-in-law, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, or first cousin (that is, a child 
of an aunt or uncle). 

Note: Authority cited: Sections 55, 59, 95 and 98.8, Labor Code. Reference: Section 
2066(d), Labor Code. 



Agenda Date: April 18, 2023 
Agenda Item No. 6D 

Item Title: Property and Casualty Insurance Renewal 

Purpose:  
To review the Company’s annual Property and Casualty insurance renewal. 

Issue: 
Should the Board ratify the renewal of our Property and Casualty Insurance with JPRIMA? 

Manager’s Recommendation: 
Ratify renewal of Company’s annual Property and Casualty insurance.  

Background:   
In CY2016, California AB656 passed, allowing mutual water companies to work with 
public agencies to form a Joint Powers Risk Insurance Management Authority (JPRIMA). 

The commercial package with JPRIMA runs from 4/1/22 to 4/1/23.  

Following is a summary of past renewal premiums: 

Policy Period Premium % of rate change 
4/1/17 – 4/1/18 $28,254 
4/1/18 – 4/1/19 $27,547 - 0.02%
4/1/19 – 4/1/20 $28,891 + 5%
4/1/20 – 4/1/21 $29,894 + 3%
4/1/21 – 4/1/22 $35,376 +18%
4/1/22 – 4/1/23 $42,689 +17.5%
4/1/23 – 4/1/24 $58,631 +37%

This year’s rates compared to last year’s rates: 

2022 2023 Diff. 
Property  $   8,148  $    13,734 69% 
Crime  $    500  $    750 50% 
General  $   7,107  $    10,546 48% 
Public Officials and Management  $   3,777  $   5,131 36% 
Auto  $   9,022  $    11,183 24% 
Excess  $    10,269  $    11,865 16% 
JPRIMA Admin Fees  $   3,866  $   5,422 40% 
TOTAL  $    42,689  $    58,631 37% 

Just as last year, the increase in this year’s premium is due to the following: 

• Increase in property and equipment values
• Increase in field payroll



• Marketplace losses in the areas of Employment Practices and Public Officials
Liability

• Premium loads for wildfire and inverse condemnation exposures

Our account manager states that Company specific premium increases account for about 
5%. The remainder is marketplace driven. 

The proposal was received on March 21st. Staff requested and received approval of the 
quote by the AFC so that coverage does not lapse. Staff is now bringing the quote to the 
full Board for ratification. 

Staff has also released a Request for Proposals (RFP) to compare current coverage and 
premiums with alternatives. Should a better value present itself this year staff would 
recommend a midyear change in the Company’s insurance provider. Proposals will be 
brought to the AFC and Board later this year. 

Impact on the Budget: 
Over budget [budgeted $41,000 and actual considered is $58,631]. 

Previous Actions: 
None. 



Item 6D





Item 6D





























Item 6D



































































Agenda Date: April 18, 2023 
Agenda Item No. 6E 

Item Title: Consideration of Board Compensation to Attend 
Chino Basin Watermaster Board Meetings 

Purpose:  
To consider establishing compensation for Directors to attend the Chino Basin Watermaster 
Board Meetings. 

Issue: 
Should the Company compensate for attendance at Chino Basin Watermaster Board Meetings? 

Manager’s Recommendation: 
Adopt Resolution 2023-04-01 establishing a standing appointment for a single Company 
Director to attend Chino Basin Watermaster Board Meetings.  

Appoint Director Parker to attend the Chino Basin Watermaster Board Meetings. 

Background:  
The Chino Basin Watermaster (CBWM) is a small but very complex organization with significant 
influence over a primary local water source. The Company is a minor producing member of the 
CBWM Appropriative Pool (AP). Staff regularly participates in meetings of the AP and previously 
served as the AP Minor Representative to the Advisory Committee. 

The AP Minor Representatives periodically get to appoint a representative to serve on the CBWM 
Board (see attached appointment cycle), along with an alternate should the appointee be unable 
to attend meetings. CBWM provides $125 reimbursement for Board Member attendance at 
meetings. AP Alternates are not provided reimbursement by CBWM. 

CBWM is a complex and political organization with lots of moving parts. There are three pools 
(AP has twenty five members, a majority of which are also SAWCO shareholders), one advisory 
committee of fourteen individuals and a Board of nine individuals. Company staff regularly attend 
AP, Advisory and Board meetings as available. Given the number of monthly meetings and 
complexity of CBWM, having more participants directly serves the Company’s interests. 

Staff recommends that the Board appoint a Company Director to regularly attend CBWM Board 
Meetings and to receive compensation of $250 per month. As proposed the $250 compensation 
would be waived if another agency makes compensation available.  

This would be a standing appointment and, going forward, included in the Company’s regular 
appointments at the Annual Organizational Meeting. 

Company’s Bylaws state: 

“Section 3.14 – Fees and Compensation of Directors. Directors and members of the committees 
may receive such compensation, if any, for their services, and such reimbursement of expenses, 



as may be fixed or determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. This Section 3.14 shall not 
be construed to preclude any Director from serving the Corporation in any other capacity as an 
Officer, agent, employee, or otherwise, and receiving compensation for those services.” 

Impact on the Budget: 
$250 compensation per meeting = $3,000 per year 

Previous Actions:  
Resolution 2006-12-01, Establishing and Fixing Fees and Compensation of the Directors and 
Committee Members. 



ROTATION SCHEDULE FOR REPRESENTATIVES TO THE 
WATERMASTER 

Proposed Representation of the Parties to the Judgment 

Approved by the Appropriative Pool 

November 17, 2015 

  APPROPRIATORS      NON-AG     AGRICULTURAL POOL MUNICIPALS 
Big Medium Small

Jan – 16 Ontario CVWD Upland Industry State Dairy IEUA TVMWD WMWD 
Jan – 17 FWC CVWD Upland Industry State Crop IEUA TVMWD WMWD 
Jan – 18 FWC Chino Minor Rep Industry Dairy Crop IEUA TVMWD WMWD 
Jan – 19 Pomona Chino Minor Rep Industry Dairy Crop IEUA TVMWD WMWD 
Jan – 20 Pomona FUWC Chino Hills Industry Dairy State IEUA TVMWD WMWD 

Jan – 21 Jurupa FUWC Chino Hills Industry Crop State IEUA TVMWD WMWD 
Jan – 22 Jurupa MVWD Minor Rep Industry Crop State IEUA TVMWD WMWD 
Jan – 23 Ontario MVWD Minor Rep Industry Crop Dairy IEUA TVMWD WMWD 
Jan – 24 Ontario  CVWD Upland Industry State Dairy IEUA TVMWD WMWD 
Jan – 25 FWC CVWD Upland  Industry State Dairy IEUA TVMWD WMWD 

Jan – 26 FWC Chino Minor Rep Industry State Crop IEUA TVMWD WMWD 
Jan – 27 Pomona Chino Minor Rep Industry Dairy Crop IEUA TVMWD WMWD 
Jan – 28 Pomona FUWC Chino Hills Industry Dairy Crop IEUA TVMWD WMWD 
Jan – 29 Jurupa FUWC Chino Hills Industry Dairy State IEUA TVMWD WMWD 
Jan – 30 Jurupa MVWD Minor Rep Industry Crop State IEUA TVMWD WMWD 

The noted rotation schedule perpetuates indefinitely until and unless there is a Court approved change. 



RESOLUTION No. 2006-12-01 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY AMENDING RESOLUTION No. 
2001-12-01 & 2005-12-01 

Entitled 
“ESTABLISHING AND FIXING FEES AND COMPENSATION OF THE 

DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS”  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors did approve and adopt the Director’s fee 

of $250.00 for each official meeting of the Board or authorized committee 

with a monthly maximum of $750.00 effective January 2002.  

WHEREAS, The Board of Directors approved and fixed the Director’s fee 

for each official meeting of the Board or authorized committee meeting be 

set at $250.00 with a monthly maximum of $1,000.00 effective January 

2006.  

NOW THEREFORE, The Board of Directors of the San Antonio Water 

Company, in Upland, California, amends the resolution to include the 

attendance at any other meeting including a meeting with staff, consultants, 

or attorneys, or conference authorized by the President or the Chairperson 

of a committee effective January 2007.   The monthly maximum of $1,000 
shall remain in effect. 

I, Kenneth Willis, Secretary of the San Antonio Water Company, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing Resolution was adopted on December 19, 2006, at a 
regular meeting of the Directors of the San Antonio Water Company by the 
following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 

Kenneth Willis, Secretary/CFO 
San Antonio Water Company 

Item 6E



RESOLUTION No. 2023-04-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF THE SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 

ESTABLISHING A STANDING APPOINTMENT  
FOR A SINGLE DIRECTOR TO ATTEND  

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER BOARD MEETINGS 

WHEREAS, The Chino Basin Watermaster was established to secure the quantity and 
quality of water within the Chino Groundwater Basin; and 

WHEREAS, The effective governance of Chino Basin Watermaster is important to the 
ongoing concerns of the Company. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this Board establishes a standing 
appointment for a single Company Director to attend Chino Basin Watermaster Monthly Board 
Meetings; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER that the attendance at said meetings qualifies for a maximum of 
$250 per month compensation per Company Bylaws Section 3.14; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER that such compensation will be waived if compensation is 
available from another agency. 

This Resolution was passed and adopted on the 18h day of April 2023. 

YEAS: 
NAYS: 
ABESENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 __________________________________ 
Rudy Zuniga, President 
San Antonio Water Company 

Attest: 

San Antonio Water Company 

Item 6E


	01 April 18, 2023 Board Agenda
	02 Board Meeting Minutes 03-21-2023
	03 AFC Minutes 11 November 22 2022
	04.1 Item 4E Income Statement Feb. 2023
	04.2 Item 4E Balance Sheet Feb. 2023
	05 Item 4F INVESTMENT REPORT Feb. 2023
	06 Item 4G 2023.PRDRPTwGRAPHS
	07 Item 4H Prominent Issues Report Apr. 2023
	08 Item 4I Project Updates
	09 Item 4J Well levels by Basins
	10 Item 4K Conservation Program Update 4-23
	11 Item 6A.memo.Salary Range Adjustment
	12 Item 6A.attachment.Salary Range
	13 Item 6B.memo.clothing.allotment
	14 Item 6C.memo.Condolence Policy Update
	15 Item 6D.memo.insurance.renewal
	16 Item 6D.attachment.Insurance Renewals
	17 Item 6D.attachment.Prop.Casualty.WC
	18 Item 6E.memo.CBWM Alternate Member stipend
	19 Item 6E.attachment.rotation
	20 Item 6E.attachment.RES. NO. 2006-12-01 meetings amend
	21 Item 6E.attachment.draft.Resolution No. 2024-04-01 CBWM Attendance



